

Meeting #:

Location:

Date:

1579 Tuesday, April 11, 2023, 5:30 pm Council Chambers 7400 Prospect Street

"This meeting is being recorded as authorized by the <u>Video Recording & Broadcasting of Open Meetings Policy</u>.

### 1. CALL TO ORDER

In honour of the Lil'wat7ul, the Village of Pemberton acknowledges that we are meeting within the unceded territory of the Lil'wat Nation.

### 2. IN CAMERA (3:30PM)

### **Recommendation:**

**THAT** the meeting is closed to the public in accordance with the *Community Charter* section 90 (1) (c) Employee Relations and (I) Municipal Objectives and related discussions that in the view of Council could reasonably expect to harm the interest of the municipality if they were held in public.

### 3. RECESS REGULAR MEETING

### 4. RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING (5:30PM)

In honour of the Lil'wat7ul, the Village of Pemberton acknowledges that we are meeting within the unceded territory of the Lil'wat Nation.

### 5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

### **Recommendation: THAT** the agenda be approved as presented.

### 6. RISE WITH REPORT FROM IN CAMERA

### 7. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

### 7.1 Regular Council Meeting No. 1578, Tuesday March 28, 2023

### **Recommendation:**

**THAT** the minutes of Regular Council Meeting No. 1578, held Tuesday, March 28, 2023, be adopted as circulated.

8. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

### 9. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

### 10. COMMITTEE MINUTES - FOR INFORMATION

11. DELEGATION

### 11.1 OCP Engagement 'What We Heard'

a. Melissa Clements, Community Planner, Andrew Cuthbert, Planner, Urban Systems

### To view the 'What We Heard' report click HERE.

### 11.2 OCP Engagement 'What we heard' Youth Summary

a. Colin Brown, Planner, Village of Pemberton

### 12. STAFF REPORTS

12.1 Office of the CAO

9

a. Verbal Report

### Recommendation:

THAT the Chief Administrative Officer's verbal report be received.

- 13. BYLAWS
- 14. MAYOR'S Report
- 15. COUNCILLORS' Reports
- 16. CORRESPONDENCE

### 16.1 Correspondence for Action

 Rebecca Beaton, President, Interact Club of Pemberton, received March 31, 2023, requesting support for the Hoop-a-Thon fundraiser

### **Recommendation:**

**THAT** Council supports the Interact Club of Pemberton by providing a contribution from the Community Enhancement Fund, in an amount to be determined by Council, as a lump sum donation and/or enroll a team to participate in the Hoop-a-Thon.

b. Rick King, President, Pemberton Red Devils Alumni Association, received April 5, 2023, requesting funding for the annual fundraiser

### **Recommendation:**

**THAT** a contribution from the Community Enhancement Fund, in an amount determined by Council, be made to support the Pemberton Secondary School Red Devils Alumni Association annual fundraiser.

### 16.2 Correspondence for Information

### 17. DECISION ON LATE BUSINESS

- 18. LATE BUSINESS
- 19. NOTICE OF MOTION
- 20. QUESTION PERIOD

### 21. IN CAMERA

### Recommendation:

**THAT** the meeting is closed to the public in accordance with the *Community Charter* section 90 (1) (c) Employee Relations and (I) Municipal Objectives and related discussions that in the view of Council could reasonably expect to harm the interest of the municipality if they were held in public.

### 22. RISE WITH REPORT

### 23. ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

### **Recommendation:**

**THAT** the meeting be adjourned.

19

21

22

### VILLAGE OF PEMBERTON

### -REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES-

Meeting #: Date: Location:	1578 Tuesday, March 28, 2023, 9:00 am Council Chambers 7400 Prospect Street
COUNCILLORS:	Mayor Mike Richman Councillor Ted Craddock Councillor Katrina Nightingale Councillor Laura Ramsden
REGRETS:	Councillor Jennie Helmer
STAFF:	Elizabeth Tracy, Chief Administrative Officer Sarah Toews, Emergency Program Coordinator Elena Aranguren, Office Coordinator
PUBLIC:	2

A recording of the meeting was made available to the media and public.

### 1. CALL TO ORDER

In honour of the Lil'wat7ul, the Village of Pemberton acknowledges that we are meeting within the unceded territory of the Lil'wat Nation.

At 9:08am Mayor Richman called the meeting to order.

### 2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved/Seconded THAT the agenda be approved as presented. CARRIED

### 3. RISE WITH REPORT FROM IN CAMERA

Council rose without report from the In Camera meeting.

### 4. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

### 4.1 Special Council Meeting, No. 1576, Tuesday, March 7, 2023

Moved/Seconded **THAT** the minutes of Special Council Meeting No. 1576, held Tuesday, March 7, 2023, be adopted as circulated. **CARRIED** 

### 4.2 Regular Council Meeting No. 1577, Tuesday, March 14, 2023

Moved/Seconded **THAT** the minutes of Regular Council Meeting No. 1577, held Tuesday, March 14, 2023, be adopted as circulated.

### CARRIED

### 5. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

There was no business arising.

### 6. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

There was no business arising.

### 7. COMMITTEE MINUTES - FOR INFORMATION

8. DELEGATION

### 9. STAFF REPORTS

### 9.1 Office of the CAO

### a. Verbal Report

CAO Tracy thanked our Public Works department for their prompt late-night response to the recent water main break on Aster St.

Ms. Tracy also expressed her gratitude for service to Ali Chapple, Assistant Operations Manager, and Vinka Hutchinson, Communications & Grants Coordinator, who will be leaving the Village of Pemberton this month.

Moved/Seconded THAT the Chief Administrative Officer's verbal report be received. CARRIED

### b. UBCM CEPF Emergency Operations Centre Equipment & Training Funding Application

Moved/Seconded

**THAT** an application to UBCM's Community Emergency Preparedness Fund Emergency Operations Centre & Training stream for funding, up to an amount of \$30,000, to purchase Emergency Operations Centre (EOC) equipment and for the facilitation of a functional exercise be supported.

### CARRIED

9.2 Corporate & Legislative Services

## a. Community Enhancement Fund: Stewardship Pemberton and Chamber of Commerce/Rotary Events Funding Requests

### Moved/Seconded

**THAT** funding, in the amount of \$500, be allocated from the Community Enhancement Fund to Stewardship Pemberton for the Earth Day Event to be held on April 22, 2023, at One Mile Lake Park Nature Centre.

### CARRIED

### Moved/Seconded

**THAT** funding, in the amount of \$500, be allocated from the Community Enhancement Fund to Pemberton & District Chamber of Commerce and Pemberton Rotary Club Annual Golf Tournament to be held on June 22, 2023, at Sunstone Golf Club.

### CARRIED

### Moved/ Seconded

**THAT** funds from the Community Enhancement Fund be reserved to support Village of Pemberton annual contribution by the Village to the Lil'wat Christmas Bureau, in the amount of \$500, and the Pemberton Food Bank, in the amount of \$500.

### CARRIED

### 10. BYLAWS

### 11. MAYOR'S Report

Mayor Richman attended and reported on the following meeting:

• Pemberton Valley Utilities & Services Committee (PVUS)

Mayor Richman reminded Council of the following upcoming events:

- Spelkúmtn Community Forest Open House at the Pemberton & District Community Centre on Thursday, March 30 at 6:30pm.
- Foundry Sea to Sky Grand Opening in Squamish on Friday, March 31 at 11:30am.
- UBCM Housing Summit "Housing BC Together" in Vancouver on Tuesday, April 4 and Wednesday, April 5
- Official Community Plan Youth Engagement Session at the Pemberton Secondary School on Wednesday, April 5.

Mayor Richman advised Council he received a request from Sea to Sky Orthopaedics for a letter of support from the Village of Pemberton for their quest to engage a sports orthopaedic surgeon, and a proposed practice share initiative aimed at maintaining orthopaedic care in the Sea to Sky Corridor.

4

### Moved/Seconded

**THAT** the Village provide a letter of support for Sea to Sky Orthopaedics initiative for a sports orthopaedic surgeon and practice share initiative.

### CARRIED

### 12. COUNCILLORS' Reports

Councillor Craddock attended and reported on the following meetings:

• Pemberton Valley Dyking District (Liaison)

Councillor Nightingale attended and reported on the following meetings and conferences:

- Pemberton Arts Council (Liaison)
- Pemberton & District Library Board
- Planet Caucus call

Councillor Ramsden will attend the following meetings:

• UBCM Housing Summit "Housing BC Together" in Vancouver on Tuesday, April 4 and Wednesday, April 5.

### 13. CORRESPONDENCE

### 13.1 Correspondence for Action

a. Jennifer Johnson, Radius Management Team, dated March 21, 2023, providing comments and/or concerns respecting the relocation of the Nature Park PlayScape feature at the Pemberton and District Community Centre

### Moved/Seconded

**THAT** all past, present and future correspondence received respecting the relocation of the Nature Park PlayScape feature at the Pemberton and District Community Centre be referred to staff and included as part of the report on the public consultation on this matter.

AND THAT correspondence be referred to Staff for response. CARRIED

b. Kimberly Jones, Board Chair, Board of Directors, Pemberton Children's Centre, dated March 20, 2023, requesting affordable housing agreement with Sea to Sky Community Services, Harrow Road Project

### Moved/Seconded

**THAT** correspondence be referred to Staff for response and to connect the Pemberton Children's Centre with Sea to Sky Community Services.

**AND THAT** staff be directed to connect with the Children's Centre Board to discuss future employment opportunities.

CARRIED

- 13.2 Correspondence for Information
  - a. BC Association of Farmers' Markets, dated February 16, 2023, regarding BC Farmer's Market Nutrition Coupon Program
  - b. Jen Ford, UBCM President, dated March 6, 2023 regarding the Province's response to Council's 2022 resolution
  - c. Patrick Weiler, MP, West Vancouver-Sunshine Coast-Sea to Sky Country, dated March 10, 2023, regarding Canada Housing Benefit
  - d. Anne Crowley, dated March 15, 2023, providing comments/support respecting to the LiveShare parking variance application and project
  - e. Patrick Weiler, MP, West Vancouver-Sunshine Coast-Sea to Sky Country, dated March 15, 2023, regarding a call for proposals to support 2SLGBTQI+ community
  - f. Reimi Shishido, received March 21, 2023, thanking the Mayor and Council for the Village of Pemberton bursary
  - g. Patrick Weiler, MP, West Vancouver-Sunshine Coast-Sea to Sky Country, dated March 22, 2023, regarding National Seniors Council launching a public consultation on aging at home

Moved/Seconded THAT correspondence be received for information. CARRIED

- 14. DECISION ON LATE BUSINESS
- 15. LATE BUSINESS
- 16. NOTICE OF MOTION
- 17. QUESTION PERIOD

There were no questions from the Gallery.

### 18. IN CAMERA

At 9:43am Council moved in camera.

Moved/Seconded

**THAT** the meeting is closed to the public in accordance with the *Community Charter* Section 90 (1) (k) Negotiations and (c) Employee Relations related discussions that in the view of Council could reasonably expect to harm the interest of the municipality if they were held in public.

### **19. RECESS REGULAR MEETING**

At 11:23am Council rose from In Camera and the Regular Meetings was recessed.

### 20. RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING

At 3:00pm the Regular Meeting was reconvened, and Council moved back In Camera.

### 21. IN CAMERA, CONTINUED

### Moved/Seconded

**THAT** the meeting is closed to the public in accordance with the *Community Charter* Section 90 (1) (k) Negotiations and (c) Employee Relations related discussions that in the view of Council could reasonably expect to harm the interest of the municipality if they were held in public.

### CARRIED

### 22. RISE WITH REPORT

At 3:25pm Council rose without report.

### 23. ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

At 3:25pm the meeting was adjourned.

Moved/Seconded THAT the meeting be adjourned. CARRIED

Mike Richman, Mayor

Sheena Fraser, Corporate Officer



Subject:	Official Community Plan Review – What We Heard: Youth Engagement Summary
From:	Colin Brown MCP, Planner II
То:	Elizabeth Tracy, Chief Administrative Officer
Date:	Tuesday, April 11, 2023

### **PURPOSE**

The purpose of this report is to present a summary of the youth engagement activities completed to date with some analysis of the results.

### BACKGROUND

The Village of Pemberton is committed to include engagement opportunities for all members of the community during the 2022-2024 Official Community Plan (OCP) Review. This includes opportunities for youth by liaising with School Districts 48 and 93 and engaging with the students.

**Ecole de la Vallee** – Village staff visited Ecole de la Vallee on February 14, 2023, engaging with all classes from Kindergarten to Grade Seven and a total of 76 students. **Signal Hill Elementary** – A school-wide OCP engagement afternoon was held with Village staff visiting 20 different classes at both primary and intermediate levels with 281 students participating.

**Pemberton Secondary School** – Village staff visited Pemberton Secondary School on April 5, 2023. Approximately 44 students from Grade 8-11 participated in a workshop and in a drop in session during the lunch hour.

Engagement objectives were to have the children reflect on three key questions:

- 1. What do students like about Pemberton today?
- 2. What would students change about Pemberton?
- 3. What do students want Pemberton to look like in 2050?

The approach to these questions was adapted with age-appropriate activities designed for the students at the primary, intermediate, and secondary levels.

The Primary students (Kindergarten - Grade 4) were asked to create three drawings:

- What you love about Pemberton?
- What you think would make Pemberton more fun?
- And draw your journey to and from school?

A sticky-dot exercise asked students to place dots on the picture that they liked from a collage of photos.

Regular Council Meeting No. 1579 Official Community Plan Review – Youth Engagement Summary April 11, 2023 Page 2 of 10

Intermediate students (Grade 5 – Grade 7) were provided maps of Pemberton and asked the same questions on what they love about Pemberton, what they think is missing, and to map their journey to school. When maps were complete, the classes were asked to decide what was missing in Pemberton and build their ideas out of Lego. Additional drawings on what they love about Pemberton and what would make Pemberton more fun supplemented the Lego creations.

Pemberton Secondary student activities used the Kitchen Table Discussion format that was available to the community. A class of approximately 35 students were divided into seven (7) groups with a student facilitator and notetaker guiding each table discussion. During the lunch hour a drop in table was set up in the school commons gathering additional comments with additional questions that asked about student thoughts about what Pemberton offers after high school. A total of 9 participants attended during the lunch hour.

### **DISCUSSION AND COMMENTS**

### **Elementary Schools**

The results were analyzed and interpreted to determine what is important to the youth. The concept of mind maps takes the results of drawings and maps to look for common patterns and details that are included. Most have a main topic or theme that is the intent of the drawing; however, just as important are the other details that show up in each drawing. In analysis, patterns were identified with respect transportation choices to and from school, plus mentions on all drawings or maps that address the three (3) key questions.

### Journey to School

In drawings and maps showing the journey to school, students were asked to provide the transportation mode and the route they typically take to school. Primary students were given images to represent walking, bikes/scooters, bus, and private vehicles and asked to draw their route and what they thought was important. Intermediate students were asked to trace their route on a map.

The results showed several patterns and themes in the responses. Active transportation modes (walking/cycling) represented approximately 50% of responses with 221 total mentions, and buses and vehicles having 223 mentions. In many cases, responses included multiple modes (e.g. walking and private vehicle) with references to seasonal conditions that impact these choices. Generally, those walking or cycling to school live within a 10minute walking distance.



Figure 1: Typical Map with walk and drive pattern



Figure 2: Walking Map from the Glen to Signal Hill

Figure 1 is a typical response showing both a walking/cycling route and a different route with a vehicle. Figure 2 is a brilliant mind map of a walk from the Glen to the school, including details of

Regular Council Meeting No. 1579 Official Community Plan Review – Youth Engagement Summary April 11, 2023 Page 3 of 10 the bridge over Arp Canel, crosswelke on Arbutus on

the bridge over Arn Canal, crosswalks on Arbutus and Portage Rd, and the winding path beside the Community Centre. Figure 3 shows a 5 and 10-minute radius measured from the front of Signal Hill Elementary.



Figure 3: Walking Radius from Signal Hill Elementary

Regular Council Meeting No. 1579 Official Community Plan Review – Youth Engagement Summary April 11, 2023 Page 4 of 10

Details on many maps and drawings identified significant landmarks and people, with many friends and family members included. Prominent landmarks include the lighted crosswalks, traffic lights, and the physical environment with many pictures of mountains, lakes, and the farms in the valley.

The choice of transportation modes and the selected route to school shows the value of walkability and variety of transportation options available. Walkability relies on route networks that are useful, safe, comfortable, and interesting. The availability of trails and safe off-street connections between neighbourhoods influences the choices families make when allowing children to walk or bike to school. Overall, the number of children walking to school is a strength for Pemberton and points to the importance and value of key connections, like those across the Arn Canal, as priorities going forward.

The mix of transportation choices suggests that more can be done to ensure the safety of all users along Portage Road, where all students and families converge on the schools. Many students identified the flashing crosswalks, the traffic light, and other important features. A casual observation of the area during the before and after school period, sees many bikes sharing the sidewalks with groups of walkers, strollers, and pets. Improvements could include the addition of a protected bike lane to provide a safer and more comfortable experience for all users.

### Drawings, Lego, and Sticky Dot Exercises

Students were asked to draw what they love about Pemberton and what they thought would make Pemberton more fun. The goal was to understand what the Village does well and where to improve. These exercises illustrate what values are felt in the community and what is missing to enhance the experience. In the analysis, both drawings, the sticky dot and collage exercise, and the Lego creations were considered. Staff captured details and tabulated the data as mentioned when certain features were included.

Assembled responses were organized into themes such as natural environment, recreation, commercial businesses, parks and open spaces, community facilities, and the community and its people. Generally, responses pointed to the value of social activities and spaces where the community interacts. Popular responses that mention existing places determine the values that should be preserved, whereas mentions of aspirational features are the vision towards the future. The images on the right show the themes that were in all the responses.



Regular Council Meeting No. 1579 Official Community Plan Review – Youth Engagement Summary April 11, 2023 Page 5 of 10 A complete tally of Youth Responses, organized in themes, is attached as **Appendix A**.

Students tend to enjoy the community and the activities that it has to offer. Outdoor activities like at One Mile Lake Park, the Skate Park, and Den Duyf Park feature prominently and align with community characteristics that value nature and recreation. Outdoor options are limited when weather is a factor and many of the desired amenities being indoors including a pool, movie theatre, and shopping. Responses valued many existing businesses particularly food services and places that have a social setting. Aspirational businesses include indoor activities like bowling and more options for restaurants.

The community and people are highly valued in the responses with many references to friends, family, and other significant persons. Housing is noted with many references to homes as favourite places in Pemberton. There is a clear link between the activities and the people who share the experience.

Some significant concerns were included that reflect some of the key issues in Pemberton from health care services to affordability. Others simply want Pemberton to stay small, "where everyone knows everyone else".

The responses from the students identify the current strengths of Pemberton and where challenges exist. There is overall satisfaction with key aspects of the community including gathering places with things to do. The challenges are mainly seasonal with some gaps during the colder months. This points towards priorities to add indoor opportunities for youth activities and gathering places.

### Pemberton Secondary School

The secondary students were engaged using the small table discussion format, with the exercises that were used in Kitchen Table Discussions in the broader community. First round of discussion asked what students love about living in Pemberton, and what will be the greatest challenge facing Pemberton in the next 25 years. Next, students participated in the NOW-HOW-WOW exercise to discuss

the existing community (NOW), what they would like to see in 25 years (WOW), and HOW Pemberton can go from NOW to WOW. Lastly, the students did a mapping exercise to identify which areas or features should be Preserved, Enhanced, or Removed. At the end of each round of discussions, each table reported back their key results which are presented as **Appendix B**.

The results of the engagement with Pemberton Secondary students reveal some core values in both what is loved and some concerns within the existing community. Values include the natural setting with mountains, scenery, and access to nature of high importance for many groups.



Regular Council Meeting No. 1579 Official Community Plan Review – Youth Engagement Summary April 11, 2023 Page 6 of 10

Recreation connects the people with the natural setting; while the community itself is identified with high value in the small, quiet, and peaceful town. There are challenges with overdevelopment a top concern and particularly where new development intersects with recreation and the trail network. The students noted the challenge of affordability and cost of living in part because of growth and new development. The environment and climate change are a concern with more work to be done on hazard mitigation for flooding, wildfire, and other areas. Growth management is a challenge that includes housing, transportation options, and allowing community facilities (health centre, schools, recreation) to keep pace.

Turning to the future, the students identified several areas that could be improved to best serve youths and the wider community. Improved public transit and better trail connections for commuting purposes should be a priority. Developing new job opportunities will assist with affordability. The students see a lack of social spaces where youth and families can gather. These spaces include commercial recreation such as bowling or movies, youth specific facilities and programming, and retail options. Community facilities should include a pool and ice rink as a year-round option for all ages.

How Pemberton goes from Now to Wow builds upon themes of growth management, affordability, and transportation. Students would like to see slower growth with more attention to management of conflict between new development and the existing community. Students noted that affordability is not just about cost of living and includes creating new jobs for youth and new government funding and supports. Discussion included whether government should consider a tourist tax with visitors influencing affordability issues in Pemberton. Students would like to see better public transit with more frequency between Pemberton and Whistler. Pemberton should work on better connections within the trail network to allow walking and biking as commuter options. Lastly, the students would like to see more community involvement in future decisions.

After the class discussions finished a drop-in lunch session was held in the school commons. While many comments are captured above, specific questions asked about what Pemberton offers students after graduation. For those who responded, economic development will be a key factor for youth to stay in the community and the need to reliable jobs. New opportunities could be located in downtown and the industrial park. The people in the community are the best reasons for youth to stay in Pemberton, though some noted that post-secondary education and seeing the world are strong motivators to leaving Pemberton after high school. Pemberton is seen as a great place to raise a family and to come back to, particularly for those who value nature and recreation.

### Conclusion

Youth engagement is a vital component to the OCP Review. This initial phase is the ideal time to have the children provide their unique perspectives on the community. The responses provide broad themes and ideas to think about as the plan is developed. Seasonal activities could lead to directions for additional programming options at the community centre or even new facilities into the future. How the community moves around from homes to destinations within the Village show the generally active values with many walking or cycling to school. The choices made are representative of the current state of the street and path network and will lead towards direction on preservation, maintenance, and future improvements.

New development is a concern and should be managed carefully as Pemberton grows. The students want development at a slower pace. It is important that social spaces, facilities, and transportation is enhanced to support the community.

Communications are a substantial portion of this project to both inform the public of the OCP Review and invite their input. Details of the communication strategy are included on the project website.

### LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

The *Local Government Act* (*LGA*), s.473 outlines the content and process requirements that must be included within an OCP and s.474 outlines policy statements regarding what may be included within the OCP. Section 475 sets out requirements for consultation during the development of an OCP.

Staff and Consultants working on this project will carefully consider the legislative framework throughout the preparation of this review and update.

### **IMPACT ON BUDGET & STAFFING**

The anticipated total budget for the OCP is \$150,000 over the life of the project. Sufficient funds have been allocated in the Development Services Contractors and Consultant Budget for most activities.

Further it is anticipated that there will be some sub-studies that will need to be undertaken as part of the OCP process. The grant application to update the Pemberton Housing Needs Report has been approved, with this work beginning shortly. Staff are exploring other opportunities for additional grant funding to assist with topic-specific work that may come from the OCP Review.

### **INTERDEPARTMENTAL IMPACT & APPROVAL**

The OCP Review will involve staff members from all departments. Staff from several departments and members of Council joined in engagement events in the schools. We thank all that participated in a team effort to engage the youth of the community.

### COMMUNITY CLIMATE ACTION PLAN

Climate change will play a significant role in the new OCP. Much of the work and outcomes from the Community Climate Action Plan (CCAP) will be brought forward and incorporated into the OCP. It should be expected that the OCP will provide further direction and support for future projects and implementation of the CCAP.

### IMPACT ON THE REGION OR NEIGHBOURING JURISDICTIONS

The OCP Review process requires engagement with several entities including Lílwat Nation, Squamish-Lillooet Regional District, Pemberton Valley Dyking District, and other agencies. The process is expected to evolve through each phase of the OCP Review.

### ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

No alternative options are presented at this time.

Regular Council Meeting No. 1579 Official Community Plan Review – Youth Engagement Summary April 11, 2023 Page 8 of 10

### RECOMMENDATIONS

**THAT** this report titled What We Heard: Youth Engagement Summary be received for information.

### ATTACHMENTS:

### **Appendix A**: Table of Youth Responses

Appendix B: Summary from Pemberton Secondary Engagement

Prepared and Submitted by:	Colin Brown MCP, Planner II
Manager Approval:	Scott McRae, Manager of Development Services
CAO Approval by:	Elizabeth Tracy, Chief Administrative Officer

Themes	Mentions
Reconciliation	0
Growth and Development	4
Servicing	2
Transportation	57
Community Facilities	105
Parks and Open Spaces	179
Economic/Commercial	222
Housing	117
Housing Options	2
Affordability	5
Environment	154
Climate Change	3
Social Issues	8
Arts and Culture	7
Agriculture	21
Recreation	220
Community	112
Transportation to School	Mentions
Walk	150
Bike/Scooter	71
Bus	87
Private Vehicle	136
Collage	Dot Totals
1. Rock/Stream Playground	16
2. Spray Park	113
3. Walking Path in Trees	19
4. Bike Path	29
5. Wood Play Structure	70
6. Outdoor Café Table	39
7. Ball Diamond	33
8. Pool	264
9. Modern Playground (Circles)	21
10. Leaf Playground	35
11. Classroom/School	18
12. Lawn with dog	30
13. Ice Cream	49
14. Skating Rink	89
15. Accessible Playground / Sunken ship	55
16. Nature Stumps	38
17. Reading / Library	93
18. Bike Park	27

<ul> <li>What do you love about living in Pemberton?</li> <li>Natural Environment <ul> <li>Mountains</li> </ul> </li> <li>Recreation <ul> <li>Biking</li> <li>Trails</li> </ul> </li> <li>The Community</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>What is the biggest challenge for Pemberton in the next 25 years?</li> <li>Climate Change <ul> <li>Natural Hazards</li> <li>Mount Meager</li> </ul> </li> <li>Cost of Living <ul> <li>Lack of Jobs</li> </ul> </li> <li>Over-Development <ul> <li>No Post-Secondary Education</li> <li>Transportation <ul> <li>Access for large vehicles</li> </ul> </li> </ul></li></ul>
<ul> <li>NOW (Existing Conditions)</li> <li>Diverse Weather</li> <li>Housing</li> <li>Flooding and Climate Change</li> <li>Limited Teen Activities</li> <li>Community</li> <li>Nature</li> <li>Welcoming and Quiet</li> <li>Bedroom Community</li> <li>Tourists</li> <li>No Pool</li> <li>Open Space</li> <li>Lacking Good Transit</li> <li>Power Outages</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>WOW (Pemberton in 2050)</li> <li>Youth Development</li> <li>Better Public Transit</li> <li>Bike Racks on Buses</li> <li>More Bike Trails</li> <li>Trail Shuttle</li> <li>Pool</li> <li>Healthcare Centre</li> <li>Better Lighting</li> <li>Recreation for Families</li> <li>Social Spaces</li> <li>Better Economy</li> <li>New Facilities</li> </ul>
	vernment funding and supports nent – Slower development nmunity t / Frequency akes and nature
<ul> <li>Mackenzie Area</li> <li>Forests</li> <li>Rivers</li> <li>Soften g</li> <li>Connect Trails</li> <li>Youth R</li> </ul>	growth ting/Commuting ec Centre chool Events itigation

### Appendix B – Pemberton Secondary Summary





Club of Pemberton

To whom it may concern,

The Interact Club of Pemberton is hosting a Hoop-a-Thon fundraiser on Saturday, May 6th. The Hoop-a-Thon is an annual basketball fundraising event organized by Rotary and Interact clubs throughout the province to support youth leadership projects. It challenges players to sink as many free throws as possible in one minute. All money raised by our club will be going to Pemberton Young Life to support youth activities in our community.

The Interact Club of Pemberton is a youth service organization under the umbrella of the Rotary Club of Pemberton. Each year the club works on at least one community based project and one global project. The Interact Club has chosen to support Young Life through this fundraiser as Young Life is an organization that strives to create meaningful, mentoring relationships between leaders and teens.

We are looking for teams of up to four players to participate and raise funds for our event. Money can be raised as a lump sum donation or a pledge per basket, as shown on the attached pledge form. Money can be collected as cash, cheque made out to Interact Club of Pemberton, or by e-transfer to PembertonInteractBC@gmail.com.

Step 1: form your team. Find 2-4 players who would like to participate.

Step 2: have each player reach out to friends, family and fellow employees to collect pledges and/or donations. Make sure you fill out all of the information on the pledge sheet.

Step 3: practice your free throw, the more baskets you make the more money you raise! Step 4: Show up on Saturday, May 6th at 1pm at the new outdoor basketball court in front of Signal Hill Elementary (rain or shine) with your pledge form and money ready to shoot some hoops.

Step 5: if needed, go back with your pledge sheet to collect from your sponsors.

Please respond to indicate your participation by April 15, 2023 to rebeccaj beaton@gmail.com

If you have any questions, don't hesitate to reach out.

Sincerely, Rebecca Beaton, President On behalf of Pemberton Interact Club



## **Rotary Hoop-A-Thon** for Local Communities



# Club / Fundraiser's Name:

Donor's phone # or email Lump Sum/Max Predge/basket # of baskets Under the Amount I minute = Amount Collected (optional) = Amount I minute = Amount Collected = Amount I minute = Amount I minut	
	Donor's phone # or emai (optional)

To receive a charitable donation tax receipt please donate online at: <u>hoopathon.ca</u>

Total Amount Collected :

## **RED DEVILS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION PRESENTS**



Donation Request Letter Red Devils Alumni Association Fundraiser to support student participation on school sports teams at Pemberton Secondary School

To Whom It May Concern:

Participating on a school sports team has become increasingly more expensive. The combination of increased travel costs and a decline in government funding has created challenging financial situations for many of our students and their families. The Red Devils Alumni Association has a goal of bringing the community together to ensure that our youth continue to have access to athletic opportunities.

After a three-year hiatus, on **Saturday, April 15, 2023** the *Red Devils Alumni Association* will be hosting our fifth annual fundraiser at Pemberton Secondary School. We are organizing a community event called *THE SHAKER*, that will include a live band/dance with the Red Chair Band and DJ Shotski, a cash bar, and silent auction. To make our fundraising event successful, we are looking for support!

We ask that you consider supporting our events by donating merchandise, gift certificates, or sponsoring the event with a cash donation. From your donation, you will receive community exposure and advertising. Your company name will be included in our social media campaign, on signage at the events, and in a thank you advertisement placed in the Whistler Pique Newspaper.

If you wish to participate, please contact us at the email address below. For more information you may also visit our website: www.reddevilsalumni.com.

Thank you in advance for considering our request!

Regards,

Rick King President, Pemberton Red Devils Alumni Association alumnireddevils@gmail.com



## **OPEN QUESTION PERIOD POLICY**

**THAT** the following guidelines for the Open Question Period held at the conclusion of the Regular Council Meetings:

- The Open Question Period will commence after the adjournment of the Regular Council Meeting;
- 2) A maximum of 15 minutes for the questions from the Press and Public will be permitted, subject to curtailment at the discretion of the Chair if other business necessitates;
- Only questions directly related to business discussed during the Council Meeting are allowed;
- 4) Questions may be asked of any Council Member;
- 5) Questions must be truly questions and not statements of opinions or policy by the questioner;
- 6) Not more than two (2) separate subjects per questioner will be allowed;
- 7) Questions from each member of the attending Press will be allowed preference prior to proceeding to the public;
- 8) The Chair will recognize the questioner and will direct questions to the Councillor whom he/she feels is best able to reply;
- 9) More than one Councillor may reply if he/she feels there is something to contribute.

Approved by Council at Meeting No. 920 Held November 2, 1999

Amended by Council at Meeting No. 1405 Held September 15, 2015